
 
 

REQUEST FOR QUOTATION (RFQ)  
 

    DATE: November 08th, 2021   

    

  

    

SUBJECT :  RFQ21-258 – CONSULTANCY FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE COUNTRY’S 

DISEASE THRESHOLD DETERMINATION  
 

 

1. You are requested to submit a quotation to carry out specific tasks as outlined in the 

Terms of Reference (Annex I).  

2. Queries or questions may be emailed to Dr Jocelyn Cabarles:  jocelync@spc.int  

3. SPC reserves the right at the time of award of contract to vary the quantity of services 

and goods specified in the RFQ.  

4. SPC reserves the right to accept or reject any Proposal and to annul the solicitation 

process and reject all Proposals at any time prior to award of contract, without thereby 

incurring any liability to the affected Bidder(s) or any obligation to inform the affected 

bidder(s) of the grounds for the Purchaser’s action.  

5. Please email your quotation to Dr Jocelyn Cabarles jocelync@spc.int by 04:00 PM, 

Noumea Time on December 10th, 2021. This letter is not to be construed in any way 

as an offer to contract with you or your organisation.  
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ANNEX I  
TERMS OF REFERENCE  

RFQ21-258 

 
5. Project Title and Background 

The International Health Regulation is an international legal instrument and capacity-building    
framework that binds member states to help prevent the spread of diseases across borders and ensure 
global health security. 
 
The Pacific region had been beset by these public health threats and disease outbreaks such as 
dengue, measles, zika, chikugunya, influenza, and leptospirosis.  Thus, it recognizes the need to 
strengthen public health surveillance network in the region. 
 
Back in December 1995, the Pacific Community (SPC) organized the Interagency Meeting of Health  
Information Requirements (IAMHIR) in Noumea, New Caledonia, with the support of UNICEF and 
WHO. The meeting, attended by regional agencies, universities and health professionals from the 
Pacific Island countries and territories (PICT), discussed ways to better prioritize and integrate public 
health surveillance in the Pacific. As a result, the basic principles of a public health surveillance 
network in the Pacific were spelled out, and a regional working group was established to pursue the 
initiative.   
The Pacific Public Health Surveillance Network (PPHSN) was set up by SPC and WHO in 1996 following 
the abovementioned meeting as a voluntary network of the departments and ministries of health of 
the 22 Pacific island countries and territories and allied partners that is a supported by a Coordinating 
Body. SPC plays the role of the focal point to the PPHSN Coordinating Body. In response to calls made 
by Ministers of Health in the region the 6 services of PPHSN had been developed over the years and 
they are namely PacNet for alert and communication, LabNet for verification and confirmation, EpiNet 
for rapid response, PICNet for infection prevention and control, the Pacific Syndromic Surveillance 
System (PSSS) for early warning and the capacity building in epidemiology programme, Data for 
Decision-making (DDM) and Strengthening Health Interventions in the Pacific (SHIP).  These service 
delivery networks provide the technical support and means for the PICTs to strengthen their 
surveillance and outbreak response and management.  However, PICTs declaring an outbreak and 
calling the outbreak over remain a challenge.  Although some PICTs had identified their disease 
threshold, most are still expressing the need to have a standard tool to measure the disease threshold. 

  

6. Scope of Work  

The Pacific Community (SPC) seeks the service of technical assistance provider(s) to develop a tool for 
determining threshold for priority infectious diseases in the Pacific. The goal of the consultancy is for 
the PICTs to use a standard tool of determining the country’s disease threshold in declaring an 
outbreak.  Additionally, the consultant will review the different existing tool in determining disease 
threshold and determine a tool applicable to the Pacific regional resources and capacities. The disease 
threshold tool will guide the Pacific Epi Net teams in deciding the declaration of an outbreak for any 
infectious disease. 

 

Specific Objectives   
i. To review existing tool or health information system used by countries in determining their 

disease threshold (if available) or for reporting infectious diseases;  
ii. To develop a tool that can easily integrate data from PICTs existing HIS for infectious diseases 

and calculate the disease threshold for specific diseases. 
  



7. Outputs  

The expected outputs are: 
b. Tool for Determining Disease Threshold of Infectious Disease; 
c. Field Guide on the tool describing the data to be collected, encoding process and analysis of 

data displaying the data encoded with disease threshold;   
d. Technical report on the consultancy work. 

  

8. Institutional Arrangements  

The consultancy is an off-site arrangement and will be managed by the Team Leader – Surveillance, 
Preparedness and Response Programme of the Public Health Division (PHD).  PHD will facilitate the 
coordination and communication with PICTs when necessary for the completion of the tasks agreed 
on the inception report. 
 
The final draft version of the tool and field guide together with the technical report will be submitted 
to the Team Leader no later than by the 18th February 2022. 
The tool will be presented and discussed with the Surveillance, Preparedness and Response 
Programme, Public Health Division programme. The tool will be consequently presented to the 
members of the EpiNet teams.  
 

9. Duration of the Work   

The work is expected to commence by 10th January 2022 and conclude on 18th February 2022 for a 
maximum of 30 working days. 
 

10. Duty station 

The consultancy work will be done off-site.  He/she will be based on his/her country of residence and 
will be providing progress update weekly through virtual meeting. 
 

11. Qualifications, Skills and Experience 

Qualifications required  
A master or higher-level degree in public health is essential. Training in software development is highly 
desirable. 
 
Experience required 
Minimum of 5 years’ experience in epidemiology and surveillance of communicable diseases. 
Experience working with multiple Pacific Island countries and territories is preferable. Demonstrated 
experience in developing data base is preferable. Experience in information systems is desirable.  
 
Skills / Technical skills and knowledge 
Demonstrated ability to consult with stakeholders and facilitate an effective and productive feedback 
process.  Demonstrated knowledge of the challenges of infectious diseases surveillance and control in 
Pacific Island countries and territories. Demonstrated ability to develop strategy, action plan, 
operational manual, or public health guidance documents. Excellent written and oral communication 
skills.  
 
Language requirements 
Written and spoken fluency in English is essential. 

 



12. Scope of bid price and Schedule of Payments 

The contract price is comprised of lump sum payments based on milestones. 

 
13. Proposal Evaluation Matrix 

Competency Requirements  Score Weight 
(%)  

Points 
obtainable 

Qualification 35 200 

Skills and technical knowledge 30 200 

Experience 25 200 

Language 10 100 

Total Score  100% 700 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ANNEX II  
Technical and Financial Proposal Submission Form  

RFQ21-038  
  
PART A – Background   

 RESPONSE BY BIDDER 

Name:    

Physical Address:    

Postal Address:    

Telephone Contact:    

Email:    

Two contacts of referees 

or references. Attach additional 

details considered as relevant  

  

   
PART B – Evaluation Criteria  

 CRITERIA  RESPONSE BY BIDDER     

Qualification   

 
Skills and technical knowledge  

  

Experience  

  

Language  

 

Remuneration 
(Please provide a daily rate 
in EUR) 

 

  

  
 

 

 



ANNEX III  
Proposal Submission Form  

RFQ21-038  
  
Part A: Undertaking  
  

7. I agree that if this proposal is accepted, to enter into an agreement with the Owner, 
to commence and to complete all the work specified or indicated in the contract 
documents.  

8. In submitting this proposal, I confirm that I have examined all the RFQ documents to 
provide technical services related to the Consultancy for the Development of 
Country’s Disease Threshold Determination.  

9. I agree to complete the services for the price stated in the remuneration.  
  

  
Part B: Conflict of interest  
  

6. I confirm that I, my family members, and the organisation or company that I am 
involved with are independent from SPC. To the best of my knowledge, there are no 
facts or circumstances, past or present, or that could arise in the foreseeable future, 
which might call into question my independence.  

7. If it becomes apparent during the procurement process that I may be perceived to 
have a conflict of interest, I will immediately declare that conflict and will cease to 
participate in the procurement process, unless or until it is determined that I may 
continue.  

 
OR 
 

I declare that there is a potential conflict of interest in the submission of my bid. Please 
provide an explanation with your bid. 
 
Part C: Privacy notice 
 

A. I understand that my bid and my personal information will be stored and used by 

SPC in accordance with SPC’s Privacy Policy and Guidelines for handling personal 

information of bidders and grant applicants. Please inform SPC if you would like 

copies of the policy or guidelines.  

B. If successful, I understand that SPC will disclose information such as my name and 

my company’s name, and the amount of the award of SPC’s website.    

 
  
 
Date:       Name: 
  
Signature:       Title: 



ANNEX IV 

Due diligence questionnaire 

RFQ21-038  
  
Please complete the following questionnaire and provide supporting documents where applicable.  
  
For individuals operating a business in their personal capacity  
  
B. Please provide any two of the following documents to verify identity and proof of address:  

C. Passport   
D. Driver’s license  
E. Voter card or other government-issued identity card   
F. Bank statement with the individual’s name displayed  

  
G. Have you been convicted for criminal offences relating to anti-money laundering or 

terrorism financing? ☐Yes    ☐No      
  

If you answered ‘yes’, please provide further details.  
  
  
1. Have you ever been the subject of any investigation, indictment, conviction or civil 

enforcement action related to financing terrorists?☐Yes    ☐No     
  

If you answered ‘yes’, please provide further details.  
  
  
For companies and other legal entities  
  
1. Please provide the following documents to verify identity and proof of address:  
  

1. Evidence of Power of Attorney/Board Resolution granted to the officers to transact 
business on its behalf; and  
1. Any of the following documents:  

a. Certificate of Incorporation   
b. Memorandum and Articles of Association   
c. Telephone bill in the name of the company  
d. Bank statement with the entity’s name displayed  

  

2. Does your entity have foreign branches and/or subsidiaries? ☐Yes    ☐No      
  

3. If you answered ‘yes’ to the previous question, please confirm the areas of 
your entity covered by responses to this questionnaire  

  

Head Office & domestic branches ☐Yes    ☐No    ☐ N/A   

Domestic subsidiaries ☐Yes    ☐No    ☐ N/A   

Overseas branches   ☐Yes    ☐No    ☐ N/A   

Overseas subsidiaries ☐Yes    ☐No    ☐ N/A   
 

4. Is your entity regulated by a national authority? ☐Yes    ☐No      
If you answered ‘yes’ please specify the name: ………………………………………………………………………….. 



   
5. Does your entity have a written policy, controls and procedures reasonably designed to 

prevent and detect money laundering or terrorist financing activities? ☐Yes    ☐No      
If you answered ‘yes’, please send SPC your policy in English   

  
6. Does your entity have an officer responsible for an anti-money laundering and counter-

terrorism financing policy? ☐Yes    ☐No      
  

If yes, please state that officer’s 
contact details:………………………………………………………………………….  

  
   

7. Does your entity provide financial services to customers determined to be high risk 
including but not limited to:  

- Foreign Financial Institutions ☐Yes    ☐No      

- Casinos  ☐Yes    ☐No      

- Cash Intensive Businesses  ☐Yes    ☐No      

- Foreign Government Entities  ☐Yes    ☐No      

- Non-Resident Individuals  ☐Yes    ☐No      

- Money Service Businesses  ☐Yes    ☐No      
  

8. If you answered ‘yes’ to any of the boxes in question 7, does your entity’s policies and 
procedures specifically outline how to mitigate the potential risks associated with these 
higher risk customer types? If yes, how?  

  
  

9. Has your entity ever been the subject of any investigations or had any regulatory or 
criminal enforcement actions resulting from violations of laws and regulations relating to 

either money laundering or terrorism financing?☐Yes    ☐No      
If you answered ‘yes’ please provide details   

  
  

10. Has the director or CEO of your entity ever been the subject of any investigations or had 
any regulatory or criminal enforcement actions resulting from violations of laws and 

regulations relating to either money laundering or terrorism financing?☐Yes    ☐No     
 If you answered ‘yes’ please provide details   

  
I declare that none of the funds received or to be received by my organisation will be used to 
finance terrorism or involve money laundering.  
  
I declare that the particulars given herein above are true, correct and complete to the best of my 
knowledge, and the documents submitted in support of this form are genuine and obtained legally 
from the respective issuing authority.  
  
 

Date:       Name: 
  
Signature:       Title: 
 
 
 



ANNEX V 

SPC GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT 

RFQ21-038  

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 


